
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

Community Safety Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
To: Councillors King (Chair), Healey (Vice-Chair), Barnes, 

Burton, Douglas, Gillies and Orrell 
 

Date: Monday, 20 February 2012 
 

Time: 5.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on the 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 6) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the committee 

held on 17 January 2012. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the committee’s remit can do so.  The deadline 
for registering is Friday 17 February 2012 at 5.00pm. 
 

4. Review of Area Based Working Pilot   (Pages 7 - 12) 
 This report describes the approach to and lessons learned from 

the Area Based Working Pilot undertaken in six wards to the west 
of the city from September 2010 to September 2011.  It also 
provides an update on the Capable Guardian Scheme. 
 
 
 



 
5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Name:  Jayne Carr 
Contact Details: 
Telephone – (01904) 552030 
Email – jayne.carr@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business from a published Cabinet (or Cabinet Member Decision 
Session) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called in’ 
business on the published date and will set out its views for 
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting in the 
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will 
be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING COMMUNITY SAFETY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

DATE 17 JANUARY 2012 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
IN ATTENDANCE 

COUNCILLORS KING (CHAIR), BARNES, 
BURTON, DOUGLAS, GILLIES AND REID 
(SUBSTITUTE FOR COUNCILLOR ORRELL) 
 
COUNCILLOR FRASER  
 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS HEALEY AND ORRELL 

 
40. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members were asked to declare any personal or prejudicial 
interests they may have in the business on the agenda.  No 
interests were declared. 
 
 

41. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of 29 

November 2011 be confirmed and signed by 
the Chair as a correct record. 

 
 

42. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there were no registrations to speak under 
the council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
 

43. INTERIM REPORT ON ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR TASK GROUP 
REVIEW  
 
Members received a report that presented information received 
to date in support of the review on Anti-Social Behaviour.  The 
report detailed the Task Group’s findings and suggested an 
alternative focus for the review, for the Committee’s 
consideration. 
 
Members noted that, in view of the information they had 
received, the Task Group had agreed that the remit set for the 
review was no longer appropriate, but they had identified a 
number of other possible areas of investigation on which the 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



review might focus, as detailed in paragraphs 48 and 49 of the 
report.   
 
The Committee was asked to identify an alternative remit for the 
Task Group review.   
 
Discussion took place around a number of issues including: 

• The possibility of seeking the Youth Council’s views in 
respect of issues relating to anti-social behaviour.   

• Giving further consideration to resource issues and the 
impact that this had on the work of the Noise Patrol. 

• Links between anti-social behaviour and alcohol. 
• The possibility of focussing the review on anti-social 
behaviour in relation to noise and vandalism. 

• The impact of the Capable Guardian Scheme and the 
Area Working Pilot. 

 
Members agreed that it would be useful to receive an update on 
the Capable Guardian Scheme and the Area Working Pilot. 
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the committee receive update 

reports on the Capable Guardian 
Scheme and the Area Working Pilot. 

 
(ii) That, based on the options identified, 

further consideration be given to 
focussing the review on issues in respect 
of young people and alcohol and drug-
related anti-social behaviour. 

 
REASON: To ensure compliance with scrutiny 

procedures and protocols, and the 
committee’s workplan. 

 
 

44. FORMATION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANEL - INFORMATION ONLY 
REPORT  
 
Members considered a report that had been presented at a 
meeting of Local Government North Yorkshire and York on 20 
January 2012.  The report detailed the arrangements for the 
establishment of a Police and Crime Panel.  Councillor Fraser 
provided an update to the Group and informed them that a 
report on this issue would be considered by Cabinet in March or 
April 2012.  It was noted that City of York Council would be 
entitled to appoint two councillors to the panel. 

Page 4



Members’ attention was drawn to a proposed workshop that 
was to be held in the region which would provide the opportunity 
to: 

• Consider Local Authorities’ role in establishing Police 
and Crime Panels, the requirements for setting them up 
and membership. 

• Examine the powers and role of the panels. 
• Consider how complaints will be dealt with. 

 
RESOLVED: (i) That the information contained within the 
     report, and its annex be noted. 
 

(ii) That the Chair and Vice-Chair be 
nominated to attend the workshop (Cllr 
Orrell to be asked to attend if the Chair 
or Vice-Chair are not able to do so). 

  
REASON: In order that the Committee is kept informed of 

the arrangements for the establishment of a 
Police and Crime Panel. 

 
 
 

45. WORK PLAN  
 
Consideration was given to the committee’s work plan.   
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the work plan be approved. 
 

(ii) That an additional meeting of the 
Committee be held on Monday 20 
February 2012 at 5.00pm to receive 
reports on the Capable Guardian 
Scheme and the Area Working Pilot. 

 
REASON:  To progress the work of the committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
Councillor K King, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 6.10 pm]. 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 

  
 

   

 
 

  
Community Safety Overview and Scrutiny    20 February 2012 
Panel     

Report of the Assistant Director (Communities and Culture) 
 

A Review of the Area Based Working Pilot   
 

Summary 

1. This report describes the approach to and lessons learned from the 
Area Based Working pilot undertaken in six wards to the west of the 
city from September 2010 to September 2011.  The report also 
provides an update on the Capable Guardian Scheme. 

Background 

2. The Area Based Working pilot was implemented to test a number of 
prepositions which included: 

• Decisions should be made based on robust data supported by 
local intelligence and community input. 

• Strategic planning and local delivery must align to inform service 
redesign  

• Efficiencies are made through robust partnership working 
reducing duplication of service delivery and wasted resources  

• Best value for money is achieved by working closely with 
communities to deliver services that meet their needs 

• Health and wellbeing is increased when communities take 
responsibility for developing and delivering solutions to the 
challenges they face.  

3. Acomb, Dringhouses and Woodthorpe, Holgate, Micklegate, Rural 
West and Westfield wards were chosen for a number of reasons 
which included:  Geographic location and alignment with the 
operating areas such as the Police, the diverse nature of their 
communities and associated issues.   

Agenda Item 4Page 7



  

Decisions should be made based on robust data supported by 
local intelligence and community input  

4. In order to address the requirement for robust data the 
Neighbourhood Management Unit worked closely with the Business 
Intelligence Hub to develop an initial suite of information drawn from 
national and local data sources. This work resulted in the first 
iteration of ward profiles and was tested first with Ward Members 
and then with partners at the Partnership conference. This enabled 
us to identify the range of information required and any additional 
data held by partners. 

5. Ward Partnership meetings were held and provided an opportunity 
for Ward Members and relevant partners to discuss the profile data 
and share their local knowledge to put the data into context. This 
resulted in identification of three priorities which were aligned to 
ward ambitions to enable us to test a model of infrastructure that 
could develop and deliver services to address the priorities.   

6. Capable Guardian meetings were already in existence in some 
wards. These meetings drew partners around the table to discuss 
issues relating to Anti Social Behaviour. However in some wards 
issues being covered ranged beyond anti social behaviour to 
environmental crime. Some wards had already drawn the Capable 
Guardian meetings into Ward Team meetings to reduce the demand 
on partners’ time.  

Strategic planning and local delivery must align to inform 
service redesign  

7. The priorities across the six wards fell into five themes:  Economy, 
children and young people, environment, older people and 
community safety.  Strategic Tasking Groups were developed based 
on the five themes. Membership consisted of senior managers from 
CYC and partner organisations and their remit was to consider ‘the 
fit’ between ward priorities and citywide strategic priorities. This 
forum enabled us to test changes to service delivery to meet local 
need. For example the roll out of outreach financial and benefits 
advice in Acomb and Holgate.  

Efficiencies are made through robust partnership working 
reducing duplication of service delivery and wasted resources  

8. Using the financial and benefits outreach example above, 
agreement was reached between Future Prospects, York Citizens 
Advice bureau and the CYC Benefits team to ensure they did not 

Page 8



  

overlap outreach areas which resulted in best use of resources and 
a larger number of residents assisted 

9. In tandem, work was undertaken to gather additional information to 
develop ward audits that could be accessed via the web. This will 
enable residents, Ward Members and partners to quickly identify 
what facilities and resources are available in each ward to avoid 
duplication and establish where to focus resources to fill gaps. This 
work is ongoing.  

Best value for money is achieved by working closely with 
communities to deliver services that meet their needs 

10. The Neighbourhood Management pilot team brief was to spend the 
majority of their time in the pilot wards linking with community 
groups and developing an understanding of resident views, issues 
and expectations. The team identified local bases in each of the 
wards which included: Foxwood Community Centre, Clements Hall, 
Acomb Explore, Poppleton Community Hall and others. Ward 
Members received ward updates on a monthly basis.  

Health and wellbeing is increased when communities take 
responsibility for developing and delivering solutions to the 
challenges they face 

11. A significant element of the pilot has been to work with communities 
to support them in developing and delivering their own solutions and 
the team have worked closely with York CVS to develop a robust 
mechanism for volunteers to link to opportunities that meet their 
aspirations. This work is ongoing and we are now exploring the 
potential for expanding the ‘Timebanking’ approach. 

Examples of good practice   

12. Examples of good practice during the pilot include: 

• Some of the issues that emerged for older people included 
isolation/transport. We worked with colleagues in City Strategy to 
secure a small amount of funding as part of the LSTF grant. We 
are now working with two Parish Councils to support them to 
deliver a ‘home to’ service.  

• We are working with partners including Age UK colleagues to 
develop a web based directory of services for older people. This 
will be supplemented with information in libraries and community 
centres.  

Page 9



  

• In relation to economy, partners were able to maximise benefits 
for some residents - an additional total of 17,000 in benefits for 
those residents helped.  

• Front line staff received training to work with communities 
experiencing local tensions, this was implemented in response to 
the growing diversity of communities to address some of the 
issues linked to community safety.  

• The Change Champions approach has been adopted to 
establish the needs of children and young people in wards where 
this theme is a priority. Young people have received training to 
enable them to facilitate sessions with their peers, Ward 
Members and service providers. Action plans have been created 
and services are being delivered against the actions.  

• There now 64 trained snow wardens and a recent external 
funding award will enable us to double this number. In addition 
snow wardens will receive training from Age UK York to enable 
them to signpost any residents they have concerns about to the 
first call 50+ service.  

Challenges 

13. Throughout the life of the pilot, a number of changes required 
adjustment of the project including the restructure of the Police 
Force, a change in national government heralding the introduction of 
the localism bill/act and the ‘Big Society’ concept, restructure of the 
LSP and the PCT, budget savings and CYC departmental 
restructures including the restructure of the Neighbourhood 
Management Unit.  

Learning  

14. Although the challenges mentioned above have impacted on the 
progress of the pilot, a significant number of lessons have been 
learned: 

• Ward profiles aid the decision making process providing relevant 
information to Ward Members and Partners  

• Audit information is critical as a tool to establish what facilities 
exist, and which organisations are delivering services and where. 
This information enables Ward Members, partners and residents 
to determine where there are gaps and focus service delivery to 
fill them. 

Page 10



  

• Further work is required to widen the number of partners and 
voluntary and community sector organisations involved in this 
approach. Private sector involvement is yet to be addressed. 

• Partner meetings at a ward and strategic level are pivotal in 
providing a forum for organisations to explore joint service 
delivery and redesign. However, these meetings must be timely 
and well planned to avoid ‘meeting overload’ 

• The new duties around Public Health and Wellbeing must be 
factored in to any future approaches.  

• Basing staff in neighbourhoods provides a much clearer 
understanding of the challenges and gives communities a visible 
point of contact.   

• Further work is required to strengthen the role of Ward Members 
as central to the development and monitoring of local service 
delivery.  

• Officer/partner meetings must be consolidated/reduced to ensure 
resources are used effectively to deliver 

• The Capable Guardian (problem solving) approach to challenges 
at a neighbourhood level working should be used as a good 
practice model and incorporated as part of the work undertaken 
with a wider range of partners at ward team meetings.  

• Including communities in determining and delivering solutions in 
their own communities provides greater ownership and provides 
significant opportunity for efficiency savings and added value. 
This approach needs increasing and improving if we are to meet 
the future challenges which include shrinking budgets and 
diminishing resources. 

• Further work is required to develop effective mechanisms for 
aligning strategic priorities with local need.  

Next Steps 

15. A report will be taken to Cabinet on 7 March recommending a new 
model of what will now be known as “Neighbourhood Working”.  This 
will draw on learning from the Area Based Working pilot. 

Recommendations 

16. That the report be noted. 

Page 11



  

Reason: To update the committee on the Area Based Working Pilot 
and the Capable Guardian Scheme. 

 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer responsible: 
Charlie Croft, Assistant 
Director (Communities and 
Culture) 

 

Sally Burns 
Director of Communities and 
Neighbourhoods 

Report 
Approved ü Date 10-02-12 

Wards Affected:   All ü 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
 

Page 12


	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Review of Area Based Working Pilot

